
 
May 18, 2020 

 
Memorandum from President Murdaugh  
 
 
The District Board of Trustees of 
Tallahassee Community College 
444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, FL  32304 

 
The following meeting Agenda and items requiring approval by the District 
Board of Trustees is provided for your use at the Monday, May 18, 2020 Board 
Meeting. 
 
The meeting will be held virtually (participant details will be provided to you 
prior to the meeting). The public may register to attend the meeting at 
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/bot-meeting/2020/may/  
 
Should you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 
 

 

  

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/bot-meeting/2020/may/


Agenda 

District Board of Trustees 

Tallahassee Community College 

444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, FL  32308 

Monday, May 18, 2020 

Business Meeting & Workshop – 2:30 PM 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

            i.         Moment of Silence 

COMMENTS 

            i.         Board Chair 

            ii.        Board Members  

            iii.       President  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. April 2020 Meeting 

Request Board approve minutes as presented. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

NEW BUSINESS 

Approval of Consent Agenda 

The consent agenda format is an organization process for meetings that allow the governing board to focus their 

time and attention on action items that require more elaboration, information, and/or discussion.  The intent of the 

consent agenda is to support efficiency and effectiveness of the meeting. 

If a trustee has a question or plans to cast a negative vote regarding a specific recommendation, then the 

trustee/trustees need to acknowledge their intention to the Chair.  This action item will be considered in the 

regular order of business as an individual action item. 

Those action items that the trustees plan to approve without further question or discussion will remain on the 

consent agenda.  Upon the final determination of the consent agenda, a motion, second to the motion, and 

unanimous approval of the Board of Trustees is needed to approve the action items.  Upon approval of the 

consent agenda, the Board of Trustees will proceed with the remainder of the agenda. 

2. Attorney Invoice - March 

Authorize payment of invoices as presented. 

3. Sponsored Programs – Provider 

Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

4. Sponsored Programs – Fiscal Agent 

Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

5. Human Resources Report 

Approve the report as presented. 



TCC Foundation 

6. TCC Foundation Update 

None required.  Report provided for information only. 

Administrative Services 

7. 2019-2020 Equity Report Update 

Approve the 2019-2020 Equity Report as presented. 

8. Construction Status Report 

Presented as an information item only. 

9. Fund Analysis - April 

For information only, no Board action required. 

Information Technology 

10. Information Technology Plan for 2020-21 

Approve the Information Technology Plan for FY 2020-21. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

WORKSHOP 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

June 15, 2020                               Location:  Main Campus 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

  



April 20, 2020  Page 1 of 3 

Minutes 

District Board of Trustees 

Tallahassee Community College 

444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, FL  32304 
 

Virtual Meeting details are available at 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/bot-meeting/2020/april/  

April 20, 2020 

Business Meeting – 2:30 PM 

 

The April 2020 District Board of Trustees virtual meeting was called to order by Chair Lamb at 
approximately 2:30 p.m. 
 
Members Present:  Chair Lamb, Trustees Callaway, Grant, Kilpatrick, Messersmith, Moore and Pople  

Absent:  None  Via phone:  Not Applicable 

Others Present:  President Murdaugh, Candice Grause, Lenda Kling, Mike Robeck, Freddy Menendez, 
Tammy Kinsey, Ayanna Young, Greg Williams, Madeline Pumariega, Al Moran, Donmetrie Clark, Lei Wang, 
Travis Jordan, E.E. Eunice, Anthony Jones, Heather Mitchell, Brittany Barnett, Andrew Atterbury, Henry 
Coles, Charles Hash, Chip Singletary, Calandra Stringer, Renae Tolson, Jacque Parramore, Mahmoud 
Abdelhadi, Patricia Manning, Tracy Woodard, Summer Dusek, Barbara Wills, Mary Kornegay, Selina 
Starling, Don Herr, Alice Maxwell, Rob Hall, Amy Bradbury, Tina Workman, George Santora, Jessica Griffin, 
Josh Willoughby, Kim Moore, Christy Mantzanas, Lynn Hatter, Sheri Rowland, Bret Ingerman, Bill Spiers, 
Stephanie Solomon, Gary Smiekle, Craig Knox, Scott Balog, Bobby Jones, Kalynda Holton, and Nyla Davis 
 
COMMENTS 
i.         Board Chair Lamb asked everyone to stand for a moment of silence and the Pledge of Allegiance. He 
shared he was glad we were able to be here under the situation in our state and nation. 

ii.        Board Members – Trustee Moore thanked all faculty, administration and staff for the work being 
done. Trustee Kilpatrick said it is an honor to be associated with Tallahassee Community College (TCC) at 
this time. Trustee Callaway stated we have again kept the student first. Trustee Messersmith shared the 
ideas of how to keep the college operational never ceases to amaze him, conveying his congratulations.   

iii.       President Murdaugh indicated he has never been prouder of this team than during this situation, 
indicating we are already talking about a new normal and what that will look like for TCC.  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. February 2020 Meeting 

Request Board approve minutes as presented. 
MOTION: Trustee Pople  SECOND: Trustee Kilpatrick 

  Motion passed unanimously.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

Approval of Consent Agenda 
  2. Attorney Invoice – January and February 

Authorize payment of invoices as presented. 



April 20, 2020  Page 2 of 3 

3. Human Resources Report 
Approve the report as presented. 

4. Sponsored Programs – Provider 
Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

5. Sponsored Programs – Fiscal Agent 
 Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 
6. Architect Invoices 
 Authorize payment of architectural invoices as presented. 
 
MOTION: Trustee Moore  SECOND: Trustee Grant 

  Motion passed unanimously.  
 

TCC Foundation 
7. TCC Foundation Update 

None required.  Report provided for information only. 
  

 8. TCC Foundation – Gift Acceptance:  100 Laptops 
Trustee Messersmith confirmed the computers will be usable in other places and for other things. 

   
  Accept gift as presented. 

MOTION: Trustee Moore  SECOND: Trustee Pople 
  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

Academic Affairs 
 9. Tallahassee Community College and Gadsden Technical Institute Articulation Agreement 

  That the Board approve the articulation agreement with Gadsden Technical Institute. 
MOTION: Trustee Messersmith SECOND: Trustee Grant 

  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 10. Academic Curriculum Changes 

Trustee Kilpatrick complimented the thoughtfulness put into the technology coursework, with 
Provost Pumariega confirming the industry certification is part of the coursework. Trustee Pople 
said the HIPAA training is very important for this community.   

 
That the Board approves the recommendation for new programs, program changes, new 
courses, and course changes as attached. 

MOTION: Trustee Messersmith SECOND: Trustee Callaway 
  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Administrative Services 

11. Construction Manager Services – RFP 2020-03 

 Approve the recommended list of pre-qualified construction managers for the period of 

February 20, 2020 to February 19, 2021. 

MOTION: Trustee Moore  SECOND: Trustee Callaway 
  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

12. Annual SREF Fire, Sanitation and Casualty Inspection 

Trustee Callaway said this is the type of thing that really makes a college look good, thanking 

everyone for taking care of the little things. 



April 20, 2020  Page 3 of 3 

  

Approve the annual SREF Fire, Sanitation and Casualty Inspection reports in accordance 

with Florida Statutes. 

MOTION: Trustee Callaway  SECOND: Trustee Pople 
  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

13. Pre-qualification of General Contractors 

Approve the amended amount authorized for pre-qualified general contractors to bid on 
projects between $2,000,000 to $5,000,000 million dollars, for the period of January 1, 
2020 to December 31, 2020. 

MOTION: Trustee  Callaway  SECOND: Trustee Moore 
  Motion passed unanimously. 
  
 14. Construction Status Report 

Presented as an information item only. 
 
 15. Fund Analysis - March 
  For information only, no Board action required. 
 
Trustee Pople asked if we expect a trend that will significantly impact our budget, with VP Wills indicating 
it may not have an impact until the next fiscal year. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

None  
 
PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
President Murdaugh shared information on legislative funding, projected increased state sales tax 
revenues, significant state emergency fund, and the federal CARES money. Despite the good news, he 
stated we are expecting some additional cuts to the legislative budget and are currently projecting three 
(3) levels of reduced budgets – without any layoffs of current employees.  
 
He said with the elimination of travel a month ago and some other cuts, we have already recognized 
savings. Trustee Moore thanked the President for finding budget cuts other than employees.   
 
The Vice-Presidents and Director Eunice provided an overview of changes and activities occurring in their 
respective areas.  
 
NEXT MEETING DATE 
May 18, 2020                    Location:  Main Campus 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Meeting adjourned at approximately 4:06 p.m. 
 
 
Minutes approved at the regular meeting of the District Board of Trustees on May 18, 2020. 
 
 
            
Eugene Lamb, Jr.    Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
Chair      President 



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 18, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

  

SUBJECT: Attorney Invoice - March 

 

 
Item Description 
Request for approval to pay invoice from Bryant Miller Olive, P.A. for legal services provided 
related to the collective bargaining process. 
  
Overview and Background 
The College engaged Bryant Miller Olive, P.A. for representation during the collective 
bargaining process.  
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board of Trustees approved the agreement for these services at the September 19, 2016 
Board meeting. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
Funding is budgeted in Fund 1, the Current Unrestricted Fund.  The current amount due is 
$3,525.00. 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize payment of invoices as presented. 

 
 



Tallahassee Community College
Barbara K. Wills, Chief Business Officer, Vice President for 
Administrative Services
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, Florida  32304

Invoice Date:
Invoice No.

Client No.

April 8, 2020
71863

25480.006

For professional services rendered in connection with Tallahassee 
Community  College - Labor and Employment - UFF Bargaining

Purchase Order No. PO-010844

Statement of Legal Services

Hours

03/02/2020 JCC Telephone conference with client (C. Grause) / librarians, funding 
issues

0.20

03/02/2020 JCC Review College wage proposal 0.50

03/03/2020 JCC Review tentative agreements 0.50

03/03/2020 JCC Update waiver issues 0.80

03/04/2020 JCC Analyze issues / discretionary wage adjustments 0.90

03/05/2020 JCC Travel to Tallahassee 3.00 No Charge

03/05/2020 JCC Conference client and attend UFF negotiations 8.00

03/06/2020 JCC Travel to Miami 3.00 No Charge

03/12/2020 JCC Telephone conference with client (C. Grause) / UFF bargaining 0.30

03/17/2020 JCC Analyze revised FRS rates 0.50

03/17/2020 JCC Analyze issues / permissibility of remote collective bargaining 
sessions

1.20

03/19/2020 JCC Analyze remote working issues 0.80

03/20/2020 JCC Telephone conference with client (C. Grause) / UFF negotiations 0.40

Current Services 14.10 $3,525.00

Recapitulation

Timekeeper Hours Rate Total

James C. Crosland 14.10 $250.00 $3,525.00



Expenses Incurred

Travel expenses 483.80

Thru 03/31/2020 $483.80

Total Current Work $4,008.80

Previous Balance Due $4,787.00

Balance Due $8,795.80

Please Reference Client Number On Checks And Wire Transfers

Mail Checks to:
101 North Monroe Street, Suite 900

Tallahassee, FL  32301
850-222-8611           FEIN 59-1315801

Send wire transfers to Capital City Bank, ABA #063100688
for credit to Bryant Miller Olive, Account #2132834901

Thank you for your business

Page: 2

Invoice Date:
Invoice No.

Client No.

April 08, 2020
71863

25480.006
Tallahassee Community College







444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 18, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

   

SUBJECT: Sponsored Programs – Provider 

 

 
Item Description 
This item requests that the Board approve the receipt of funding for the listed projects. 
 
Overview and Background 
The following are recommended for approval. 
 
I. Receipt, Amendment, Extension of Resources  
Florida Department of Education – Troops to Teachers – Amendment 4 
This amendment provides a no-cost extension through May 14, 2020. The amount of the 
budget remains $469,657.84 and there is no impact on the deliverables of the grant. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Perkins V – TCC – Director of Career and Technical 
Education Outreach and Recruitment 
This project supports a position to develop a comprehensive, integrated recruitment 
campaign for the state’s Perkins supported career and technical education programs and 
courses, The amount of this award is $40,000 with an indirect cost rate of 5%.  The funding 
period is from 4/1/2020 through 6/30/2020.  
 
US Department of Education – Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund – Student Aid 
The Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund is authorized through the CARES Act, and 
provides emergency financial aid grants to students for expenses to the disruption of campus 
operations due to coronavirus. The amount of the award is $3,881,792.00.  The funding 

period is through 4/12/2021. 
 
US Department of Education – Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund – Institutional Aid 
The Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund is authorized through the CARES Act, and 
provides funding to cover costs associated with significant changes to the delivery of instruction 
due to the coronavirus. The amount of the award is $3,881,792.00.  The funding period is 

through 4/20/2021. 



 
 
 
II. Commitments, Expenditures, Contracts for Service 

 
None 

 
Past Actions by the Board 
Florida Department of Education – Troops to Teachers Amendment 2 & 3 
Prior Amendments approved at the April 2020 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
The above projects are established in Fund 2, Restricted Accounts.  
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 18, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

   

SUBJECT: Sponsored Programs – Fiscal Agent 

 

 
Item Description 
This item requests that the Board approve the receipt of funding for the listed projects. 
 
Overview and Background 
The following are recommended for approval. 
 
I. Receipt, Amendment, Extension of Resources  
Florida Department of Education – Holocaust Education Task Force FY19-20 – 
Amendment 3 & 4 
These amendments provide professional services for Board planning and Bylaws revision 
related to the Holocaust Education Task Force, and extends the current grant period 
through 9/1/2020.The contract amount remains $92,857.89, and there is no impact on the 
deliverables of the grant. 
 

Florida Department of State, Division of Cultural Affairs – Word of South Festival – 
Amendment 1 
This amendment adjusts the budget provide for marketing of the Word of South Festival as 
the event was cancelled.  The contract amount remains $36,573.00.  The deliverables are 
adjusted to align with the budget and marketing plan. 
 
 
Florida Department of Transportation – Florida Traffic Safety Fiscal Assistant –   
Amendment 1 
This amendment provides increased salary to comply with federal. The amount of the 
budget increased by $5,000 for a total of $55,000. There is no impact on the deliverables of 
the grant. 
 
 
 



II. Commitments, Expenditures, Contracts for Service 
None at this time. 

 
Past Actions by the Board 
Florida Department of Education – Holocaust Education Task Force FY19-20 
Amendments 1 and 2 were approved at the April 2020 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Florida Department of State, Division of Cultural Affairs – Word of South Festival 
Initial award was approved at the September 2019 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Florida Department of Transportation – Florida Traffic Safety Fiscal Assistant Program 
Initial award was approved at the November 2019 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
The above projects are established in Fund 2, Restricted Accounts  
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 18, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

   

SUBJECT: Human Resources Report 

 

 
Item Description 
This item request Board approval for personnel actions. 
 
Overview and Background 
Pursuant to College Policy 04-06 and 04-17, the College brings forth a request to approve 
appointments, separations and outside employment.  
 
Past Actions by the Board 
Personnel actions are taken to the District Board of Trustees monthly.  The Board has not 
addressed this item previously. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
This item is funded by the 2019-2020 Operating Budget. 
 
Recommended Action 
Approve the report as presented. 

 



Name Department Effective Date

Jennifer Russell Director of Nursing Programs Health Care Professions April 6, 2020

Name Position Department Effective Date

Brittany Barnett Digital Communications Specialist Marketing and Communications April 1, 2020

Shacarra Sigler Budget Coordinator Sponsored Programs and Financial Planning April 6, 2020

David Esher Maintenance Technician II Facilities April 20, 2020

Name Position Department Effective Date

None to Report

Name Position Department Effective Date

Tatianna Moore Human Resources Specialist II Human Resources March 30, 2020

Alexandra Johnson Project Manager DOE Test Development Center April 1, 2020

Kerrie Morris Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC Santa Rosa C.I. April 1, 2020

Nyama Williams College Success Coach Talent Search April 1, 2020

Candice Mills Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC Gulf C.I. April 10, 2020

Name Position Department Effective Date Prior Position

None to Report

Name Position Department Enrollment Date End Period 

None to Report

Name Position Department Effective Date Separation Type

Chris McNally Developmental Math Faculty Transitional Studies March 31, 2020 Retired

Meri Culp English Faculty Communications and Humanities March 31, 2020 Retired

Carolyn Marshall Custodial Worker Facilities April 9, 2020 Resigned

Paula Capps Career Development Specialist Grant Compass 100 DOC Gulf C.I. April 9, 2020 Resigned

Kelli Longfellow Instructional Designer TCC Online Distance Learning April 10, 2020 Resigned

Jabari Powell Learning Commons Specialist Learning Commons April 17, 2020 Resigned

Jennifer Thompson Workforce Development Specialist Workforce Development April 23, 2020 Resigned

Derek Hemenway Business Analyst Student Affairs April 24, 2020 Resigned

Name Position Department Employer Position

Seeking to Hold Political Office Request (All Employees)

None to Report

Drop Retiree Participants (All Employees) 

Separations (All Employees) 

Outside Employment Requests (All Employees) 

Original Appointments - Executive, Administrative, Managerial & Professional 

Original Appointments - Classified Staff

Original Appointments - Faculty 

Original Appointments -  Contracts & Grants 

Re-Appointments (All Employees)



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 18, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Heather Mitchell                                                                                                                         
Vice President for Institutional Advancement and Executive Director of the TCC 
Foundation 

   

SUBJECT: TCC Foundation Update 

 

 
Item Description 
The following is an update of the events planned and initiatives & activities undertaken by the 
TCC Foundation. 
 
Overview and Background 
Attached is a report of funds raised by the TCC Foundation to date for the current fiscal year.  
The report includes a summary of total funds received, giving summary by designated area, 
number of donors and number of gifts. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The District Board of Trustees receives a Foundation update at every Board Meeting. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
There are no Funding/Financial implications arising from this standard monthly report. 
 
Recommended Action 
None required.  Report provided for information only. 

 



TCC Foundation - Financial Update FY 19/20

 July - April



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 18, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

  

SUBJECT: 2019-2020 Equity Report Update 

 

 
Item Description 
Tallahassee Community College submits an annual Equity Report to the state to update and 
provide a status of the College’s Educational Equity Plan which documents efforts to comply 
with state and federal civil rights laws related to nondiscrimination and equal access to 
postsecondary education and employment. 
 
Overview and Background 
Each year Tallahassee Community College is required to submit an annual Equity Report 
Update to the Florida Department of Education.  This equity report contains the status of the 
College’s policies and procedures related to equity, and their resulting effects and outcomes.  
The Division of Administrative Services coordinates the completion of the annual equity report 
but has the support of the Division of Academic Affairs, Students Affairs, Institutional 
Effectiveness, and the TCC Athletics Department.  This year, the Annual Equity Report was 
due to the State of Florida on May 1, 2020, and at the direction of the Florida College System 
was submitted without signature as follows; “while the report must be submitted by May 1, 
2020, DFC will accept signature pages signifying district board of trustees’ approval after the 
May 1, 2020 deadline.” 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
N/A. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
TCC’s Annual Equity Report for 2018-2019 was approved by this Board on June 16, 2019.  
 
Recommended Action 
Approve the 2019-2020 Equity Report as presented. 
 

 



Tallahassee Community College 
2019-2020 Equity Update 

Executive Summary 
 

Tallahassee Community College (TCC or the College) submits an equity update report 
to the State of Florida each year. The 2019-2020 Annual Equity Update will be adopted by the 
Board of Trustees on May 18, 2020, having been signed by the Board Chair and the College’s 
President. This report provides updates on the College’s efforts to comply with Florida Statues 
related to nondiscrimination and equal access to postsecondary education and employment.  
Updates, observations and planned strategies are addressed for the following equity 
categories: (1) Employment Equity, (2) Student Participation, and (3) Gender Equity in 
Athletics. The Florida Department of Education (FLDOE) provided three years of data (2016-
2017, 2017-2018 and 2018-2019) for each area. All racial/ethnic category labels reported here 
are those supplied by FLDOE. This summary highlights findings and strategies from the report. 

 
Employment Equity 

Following the Department of Education, Florida College System guidance the College 
initiated new goals in 2016-2017 for reporting Executive/Administrative/Managerial (EAM) Staff, 
Instructional Staff, and Instructional Staff with Continuing Contract representation utilizing the 
College’s student population as its benchmark rather than the U.S. Census as was done in 
previous years. 
 

Executive/Administrative/Managerial (EAM) Staff: 
The College met its goals for all EAM categories by coming within ten percentage 

points of the student population. In addition, for the first time in its history of submitting the 
Annual Equity Update the College achieved representation in all EAM categories.   

 
Instructional Staff: 
The College met its goals for all Full-Time Instructional Staff categories by coming 

within ten percentage points of the student population. 
 

Instructional Staff with Continuing Contract: 
The College met its goals for all Full-Time Instructional Staff with Continuing Contract 

categories by coming within ten percentage points of the student population.  
   

Employment Equity Goal: 
The College’s 2020 goal is to continue to have all employment categories reflect 

employment demographics within 10% of the College’s student body population.  The College 
will continue to focus on hiring strategies and recruitment efforts that target underrepresented 
populations as compared to our student population. 
 
Student Participation 

Three areas of “student participation” are addressed in the report: Enrollments, 
Completions, and Success in Targeted Programs.  Findings and strategies are listed below by 
area: 

 
Enrollments   

TCC experienced declines in 2018-2019 for both overall (-2%) and FTIC (-5%) 
enrollments that have impacted our ability to meet student enrollment goals.  We did 
experience a slight increase in FTIC black females but in most categories,  numbers remained 
flat or slightly down.  We continue to evaluate our recruitment and enrollment processes 
looking for stop-gaps in processes that can be addressed, have launched an online virtual tour 
for prospects from out of district, and offer a TCC Preview Day for local high school students.  
As stated last year, we continue to expand our dual enrollment outreach specifically to high 
schools in the 32304 Zip code, and marketing and recruitment strategies focused on 



TCC2FSU and TCC2FAMU.  We continued the use of texting and chat through our Enrollment 
Call Center and expanded the College’s out-of-the-classroom non-academic supports.  We 
also continue to support our Take Stock In Children and Talent Search programs.  

 
Race: 
The College did not meet its goal to reduce the enrollment percentage gap between 

Black Male FTIC as a percentage of total FTIC Enrollment, or Black Male FTIC and Black 
Male Total Enrollment, as both of these categories remained flat from 2017-2018 to 2018-
2019.  However, the gap between Black and White Female Total Enrollment and Black and 
White Total Enrollment decreased from the previous year by 1.3% and .8%, respectively.  
Positive movement was also seen in the category of Black and White Female FTIC;  Black 
Female FTIC surpassed White Female FTIC Enrollment by 3.3%.  The enrollment percentage 
gap between Hispanic and White Total Enrollment has continually decreased; most recently by 
.3%.   

 
Gender: 
The College enrollment percentage gap of Male Total Enrollment compared to Female 

Total Enrollment, and Black Male Total Enrollment compared to Black Female Total 
Enrollment increased by .8% and 1.1%, respectively.  No disproportionate enrollment rates 
were identified when enrollments of Hispanic Males were compared to enrollment of Hispanic 
Females, and no disproportionate enrollment rates were identified when enrollment of White 
Males were compared to enrollment of White Females.  

 
Methods and Strategies: 

 1. In adopting the College’s new strategic plan (2019-2023), equity, specifically closing 
equity achievement gaps, was identified as our top priority. As we disaggregated data, we 
found two equity challenges that the college is working to address: (a) Gaps in completion rate 
and (b) Low college enrollment and high failure rates of students at our closest (and 
majority/minority) high school.   2. TCC has invested in a Summer Bridge program (Eagles 
RISE Academy) to identify areas in which under-prepared students tend to struggle and then 
strengthens college readiness for these students who are transitioning to college from some of 
our most vulnerable high schools. This program provides students a jump start on building 
academic skills, especially in English and Math. It also provides students the opportunity to 
become acquainted with college resources and expectations, while enabling interaction with 
faculty and staff. Students participate in a learning community model where select classes are 
clustered along with a math immersion class and student engagement seminars.   3. Student 
onboarding practices have been realigned to help ensure a more seamless transition to 
college, with the new student orientation serving as a critical component in building strong and 
effective early connections. Participation in the college orientation program is the initial step of 
connecting students to advisers and helping them feel that they authentically belong and are 
supported as they start their college career. We focused our efforts to maximize our time with 
students to inform them of first-year programs, academic advising, learning support and 
charting their path to success at the college. In addition, we identified social and personal 
development services which meet the needs of students, such as mental health counseling 
services.   4. We have prioritized our partnerships with K- 12 by expanding dual enrollment 
opportunities, by supporting a mentoring program at our middle schools and by connecting our 
college faculty to high school faculty. Those strategies have been impactful and led to a 33 
percent growth in dual enrollment over the past two years.   5. The College partnered with the 
Florida College Access Network to become the Local College Access Network (LCAN). 
LCANs are community-based bodies made up of representatives from K-12, higher education, 
nonprofits, local government, business and economic development, and philanthropic 
organizations. These collaborative networks are committed to increasing college and career 
readiness, access, and attainment rates. 

 
 



 
Completions   

Completion is defined as the percentage of annual graduates represented by students 
in each racial/ethnic and gender category.   

 
Race: 
The College met its goal for Black students completing A.A. degrees and certificate 

programs by increasing the percentage of completion from the prior year by 1.8% and 7.9%, 
respectively. In addition, the completion percentage gap between Black and White students in 
A.A. degree and certificate programs decreased from the previous year by 4.2% and 14.8%, 
respectively. Black Females completing A.A. degrees increased by 2%, and Black Females 
completing certificate programs increased by 4.5%.  However, Black Males completing A.S. 
degrees decreased by .4%.  The College will continue to focus its efforts on increasing the 
percentage of Black students who complete A.A. degrees, A.S. degrees and certificate 
programs.  

 
Gender: 
The completion percentages for Females increased across the three award types 

(A.A., A.S., certificates); A.A. degrees, A.S degrees, and certificate programs increased for 
this population from the previous year by 2.7%, 2.5% and 1%, respectively.  There are still 
disproportionate completion rates when comparing Black Male and Female completion rates 
for A.S. degrees, and White Male and Female completion rates for both A.S. degrees and 
certificate programs; the College will continue to focus in these areas. 

 
Methods and Strategies: 
While the College has not achieved all goals, we have seen success in increasing the 

number of black students earning Associate in Arts degrees and certificates.  We continued 
our work with mapping out academic pathways, strengthened our transfer support programs, 
and ensured students earned the certificates that were embedded into the A.S. programs. 

 
1. Understanding that student pathways are personal and must be based on a 

student’s strengths, interests, and values, the College launched the SuperStrong Assessment 
during orientation to help students make informed career decisions. Together, students and 
advisors determine the student’s schedule and create a holistic support plan for a successful 
year.  2. Framed through the lens of our equity data, over 170 faculty and staff participated in 
design thinking sessions to address the question of “How might TCC redesign its student 
experience through an innovative model that removes barriers for all students to be 
successful?” Various sessions produced a list of campus-wide barriers and identified high 
impact strategies to address barriers. Through our CCSSE and SENSE data we gained an 
awareness that while we offer students a multitude of services, they did not see the 
relationship of those to their individual experience. This led to a strategy aligned to the 
strategic plan to redesign our student services model through the lens of students and to 
deepen the integration of those services. The redesigned model is founded on the principles of 
Connections, Academics, Resources, and Engagement.   3. Together with Flagler College’s 
leadership, we have re-energized the partnership to align programming with in- demand 
professions across the state of Florida, while working to remove barriers to access for our 
students. To address the state’s growing teaching shortage, leadership from both institutions 
worked to establish a 2+2 articulation agreement in Education at a cost of under $10,000.  
Nursing, another in-demand career, is facing a state shortage that will create a need for more 
than 14,000 Registered Nurses (RN). In response, TCC developed a Bachelor of Science in 
Nursing (BSN) program in 2016. TCC established an articulation agreement with Lively 
Technical College to provide a bridge for its licensed practical nursing graduates into our BSN 
program.  4. We also launched Math Champions, a tutoring and intensive support program. 
The student-tutors are embedded in the developmental math courses as peer mentors and 
work with students during class time to provide one-on-one support.  5. We are expanding our 



out-of-the-classroom support through such services as Talon’s Market (TCC’s free food 
pantry) and FarmShare.  In addition to providing mental health counseling, we have also hired 
a case manager to work with students whose basic needs are impacting student success. 

 
Success in Targeted Programs 

The College offers several programs that are geared towards increasing participation 
of students in programs and courses in which students have been traditionally 
underrepresented, including, but not limited to, mathematics, science, computer technology, 
electronics, communications technology, engineering and career education, as required under 
§1000.05, F.S.  The programs include:  Florida Georgia Louis Stokes Alliance for Minority 
Participation (FGLSAMP), Sister 2 Sister, and Black Male Achievers.  Each program provides 
strategies to increase participation for underrepresented students and is outlined in detail in 
the 2019-2020 Equity Report. 

 
Gender Equity in Athletics  

The College continues its commitment to provide equal opportunities to its male and 
female student-athletes. Eight sports are currently offered: men’s and women’s basketball, 
baseball, softball, men's and women’s cross country, and men's and women's track (indoor 
and outdoor). Volleyball is still under consideration.  

 
The College did not meet its goal for gender equity in athletics for 2018-2019.  There 

were seven females (three softball, four cross country) who had originally agreed to participate 
in the College’s programs, but did not follow through with their commitment.  Had these 
individuals been part of the report, our participation numbers would have only been off by 
0.5%. 

 
All participants, regardless of gender, have access to comparable scholarships and like 

resources and facilities, in all aspects: housing, travel accommodations, coaches, support 
staff, and equipment and supplies. Academic support resources are also available to 
participants from all teams. 

 



 

 

Division of Florida Colleges 
325 W. Gaines Street, Suite 1244 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400 

FCSInfo@fldoe.org 
850-245-0407 

 

 
 
 

 
 

Tallahassee Community College 
 

 

College Annual Equity Update 

2019-2020 

Template for Submission 

 
Deadline: May 1, 2020 

 
 
 
 
Submission Information 
Equity Officer: Renae Tolson 
Email: tolsonr@tcc.fl.edu 
Phone: 850-201-6074 
Date: April 27,2020 

  
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

1 
 

Contents 
General Information and Applicable Laws for Reporting .....................................................................2 

Part I. Description of Plan Development .............................................................................................3 

Part II. Policies and Procedures that Prohibit Discrimination ...............................................................3 

Part III. College Employment Equity Accountability Plan ......................................................................6 

Part IV. Strategies to Overcome Underrepresentation of Students .................................................... 14 

Part V. Substitution Waivers for Admissions and ............................................................................... 23 

Course Substitutions for Eligible Students with Disabilities ........................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Part VI. Gender Equity in Athletics .................................................................................................... 26 

Part VII. Signature Page .................................................................................................................... 29 

 

  



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

2 
 

General Information and Applicable Laws for Reporting 
 
The purpose of the College Annual Equity Update is to provide updates on efforts to comply with Florida 
Statutes related to nondiscrimination and equal access to postsecondary education and employment in 
Florida College System (FCS) institutions. The following Florida Statutes (F.S.) and implementing State 
Board of Education rules in the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) have specific requirements for the 
annual update.  
 

 Section 1000.05, F.S., the “Florida Educational Equity Act” 

 Section 1012.86, F.S., Florida College System institution employment equity accountability 
program 

 Section 1006.71, F.S., Gender equity in intercollegiate athletics 

 Implementing Rule 6A-10.041, F.A.C., Substitution for Requirements for Eligible Students with 
Disabilities at Florida Colleges and Postsecondary Career Centers 

 Implementing Rules 6A-19.001 – 6A-19.010, F.A.C., related to educational equity 
 
The Division of Florida Colleges (DFC) continues to provide certified data in Excel format on the areas of 
measurement required by statute and rule. Additionally, tables have been created and embedded in the 
template for setting goals and reflecting goal achievement. DFC encourages each college to devote 
attention to the development of effective methods and strategies for any areas of improvement 
identified in analyses. 
 
Submission of the College Annual Equity Update is due to the Florida Department of Education, Division 
of Florida Colleges by May 1, 2020. The update should be submitted by email to FCSInfo@fldoe.org. 
Colleges must submit this equity template in Word format. PDFs of the report template will not be 
accepted. Colleges may attach additional documents in PDF or Word format as appendices. Note: while 
the report must be submitted by May 1, 2020, DFC will accept signature pages signifying district board 
of trustees’ approval after the May 1, 2020, deadline, if the college indicates the equity report approval 
is scheduled for its next district board of trustees meeting. 

 
DFC conducts reviews of annual college equity update reports pursuant to Rule 6A-19.010, F.A.C., 
implementing the Florida Educational Equity Act. The goals are to provide feedback for future updates, 
monitor efforts by the college to increase diversity in student participation and employment and meet 
requirements of Florida Statutes, including, but not limited to, the Florida Educational Equity Act and 
sections 1000.05, 1012.86 and 1006.71, F.S. 
 
The review includes an assessment of the college’s methods and strategies established to achieve goals 
and timelines addressing areas of underrepresentation of minorities in its academic programs, activities 
and employment. The review also includes an evaluation of submitted policies and procedures for 
compliance with state and federal civil rights laws prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, 
national origin, ethnicity, gender, marital status, age, genetic information or disability. The review may 
include comments or recommendations in areas where the college has achieved or exceeded its goals or 
in areas where there is incomplete or missing information. 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

3 
 

For the 2019-20 report, the factors DFC will identify as part of its review will be embedded after sections 
of the report and DFC will use these sections to provide feedback to colleges. These will be marked 
“Completed by Division of Florida Colleges.” Example:  

 
 

Part I. Description of Plan Development 
 

Did the college make any changes to the development of the college equity plan? Make a selection: No 
If yes, provide the following applicable updates. 

 
A list of persons, by title and organizational location, involved in the development of the plan.  
 
Response: Click here to enter text. 
 
A description of the participation of any advisory groups or persons. 
 
Response: Click here to enter text. 

 

Review of Part I: Description of Plan Development 
(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 

 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Did the college change the college 
equity plan? 

Select one.   

If yes, applicable updates provided? Select one.   

 

 
 

Part II. Policies and Procedures that Prohibit Discrimination 
 

This section relates to processes used to ensure that certain policies and procedures are current, 
accurate, in compliance and available to all students, employees and applicants as required by statute.  
 
A) Has the governing board updated the college’s approved and adopted policy of nondiscrimination? 
Make a selection: No If yes, provide the following applicable updates. 
 

Date of revision: Click here to enter text. 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

4 
 

Description of the revision: Click here to enter text. 
Web link(s) to document the revision: Click here to enter text. 

 
B) Has the college updated the procedures used to notify staff, students, applicants for employment and 
admission, collective bargaining units and the general public of this policy? Make a selection: No If yes, 
provide updated information. 

 
Response: Click here to enter text. 

 
C) Has the college changed the person(s) designated to coordinate the college’s compliance with section 
1000.05, F.S.; Rule 6A-19.009-.010, F.A.C.; Title IX; Section 504; or Title II? Make a selection: No If yes, 
provide the following applicable information for each updated contact. 

Name/title: Click here to enter text. 
Phone number: Click here to enter text. 
Address: Click here to enter text. 
Email address: Click here to enter text. 
Is this contact’s information available in the regular notice of nondiscrimination?  
Make a selection: Select one. 
 

D) Has the college updated the grievance or complaint procedures for use by students, applicants and 
employees who allege discrimination? Make a selection: No If yes, provide the following applicable 
updates. 

 
Date of revision: Click here to enter text. 
Description of the revision: Click here to enter text. 
Web link(s) to document the revision: Click here to enter text. 

 
E) Grievance procedures should address the following, at a minimum, as required under Rule 6A-
19.010(h), F.A.C. Confirm if the college is meeting these requirements. 
 

1) Notifications of these procedures are placed in prominent and common information sources. 
Make a selection: Yes 

 
2) Procedure(s) are designed to encourage prompt and equitable resolution of student, employee 

and applicant complaints, but do not prohibit individuals from seeking redress from other 
available sources. Make a selection: Yes 

 
3) Procedures prohibit retaliation against any person filing a complaint alleging discrimination or 

any person alleged to have committed discrimination. Make a selection: Yes 
 

If no, provide the college’s plan for compliance. 
 
Response: Click here to enter text. 

 
 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

5 
 

F) Have there been any revisions to nondiscrimination policies or procedures pertaining to: 

Title IX? No 

Title II? No 

Section 504? No 

Nondiscrimination policies or procedures pertaining to disability 
services, including Rule 6A-10.041, F.A.C., that addresses course 
substitution requirements? 

No 

Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome/Human 
Immunodeficiency Virus (AIDS/HIV) Infectious Disease? 

No 

Other policies or procedures related to civil rights or 
nondiscrimination? 

No 

 

If yes, address the following for any identified policies or procedures. 

Name of the policy and/or procedure(s): Click here to enter text. 
Date of revision: Click here to enter text. 
Description of the revision: Click here to enter text. 
Web link(s) to document the revision: Click here to enter text. 

 

Review of Part II: Policies and Procedures that Prohibit Discrimination 
(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 

 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Have there been any updates to the 
college’s policy of nondiscrimination 
adopted by the governing board? 

Select one.   

If yes, applicable updates provided? Select one.   

Have there been any updates to the 
procedures utilized to notify staff, 
students, applicants for employment 
and admission, collective bargaining 
units and the general public of this 
policy?  

Select one.   

If yes, applicable updates provided? Select one.   

Have there been any updates to 
person(s) designated to coordinate the 
college’s compliance with section 
1000.05, F.S.; Rules 6A-19.009-.010, 
F.A.C.; Title IX; Section 504; or Title II? 

Select one.   

If yes, applicable updates provided? Select one.   

Have there been any updates to the 
college’s grievance or complaint 
procedures for use by students, 
applicants and employees who allege 
discrimination? 

Select one.   



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

6 
 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

If yes, applicable updates provided? Select one.   

Grievance procedures should address 
the following at a minimum as required 
under Rule 6A-19.010(h), F.A.C. 

- - - 

Notifications of these procedures 
are placed in prominent and 
common information sources. 

Select one.   

Procedure(s) are designed to 
encourage prompt and equitable 
resolution of student, employee 
and applicant complaints, but do 
not prohibit individuals from 
seeking redress from other 
available sources. 

Select one.   

Procedures prohibit retaliation 
against any person filing a 
complaint alleging discrimination or 
any person alleged to have 
committed discrimination. 

Select one.   

If no, is a plan for compliance 
provided? 

Select one.   

 

 
 

Part III. College Employment Equity Accountability Plan 
 

Section 1012.86, F.S., Florida College System institution employment equity accountability program, 
requires that each college include in its annual equity update a plan for increasing the representation of 
women and minorities in senior-level positions, full-time faculty positions and full-time faculty positions 
who have attained continuing contract status. The plan must include specific, measurable goals and 
objectives, specific strategies and timelines for accomplishing these goals and objectives and 
comparable national standards as provided by the Florida Department of Education.  
 

A. Data, Analysis and Benchmarks 

DFC provides colleges with employment data for the last three fall terms to evaluate employment trends 
for females and minorities in senior-level positions (also referred to as 
Executive/Administrative/Managerial or EAM positions), full-time instructional staff and full-time 
instructional staff with continuing contract status. DFC also provides colleges with student enrollment 
percentages by race and gender to be used as the benchmark for setting employment goals, as colleges 
seek to reflect their student demographics in their employment. 
 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

7 
 

College Full-Time Executive/Administrative/Managerial Staff  
Informed by the EMP-EAM tab, complete the following table to analyze the college’s attainment of 
annual goals and long-range goals for increasing the number of women and minorities in EAM positions.  

 

  

2018-19 Report 
Year College 

Student 
Population  

(%) 

EAM 
Actuals  

(%) 
Fall 2018 

EAM 
Actuals  

(%) 
Fall 2019 

EAM 
Stated 

Goals (%) 
Fall 2019 

EAM  
Goal Met 
(Yes/No) 

EAM Goals 
for 

Fall 2020 

Black Female 20.4%  20.8%  19.2% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Black Male 13.1%  8.3%  7.7% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Hispanic Female 6.5%  0.0%  3.8% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Hispanic Male 7.1%  0.0%  3.8% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Other Minorities 
Female 3.0% 4.2%  3.8% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Other Minorities Male 2.2%  4.2%  3.8% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

White Female 23.2%  29.2%  23.1% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

White Male 24.5%  33.3%  34.6% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Total Female 53.1%  54.2%  50.0% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Total Male 46.9%  45.8%  50.0%  

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

 
Describe and evaluate strategies for addressing underrepresentation in EAM positions. 
 
Response: The College met all goals within the EAM category by coming well within ten percentage 
points of the student population.  In addition, for the first time in its history of submitting the Annual 
Equity Update the College achieved representation in all EAM categories.    
 
  



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

8 
 

College Full-Time Instructional Staff 
Informed by the EMP-INSTRUCTIONAL tab, complete the following table to analyze the college’s 
attainment of annual goals and long-range goals for increasing the number of women and minorities in 
full-time instructional positions.  

 

  

2018-19 
Report 

Year 
College 
Student 

Population  
(%) 

INST 
Actuals  

(%) 
Fall 2018 

INST 
Actuals  

(%) 
Fall 2019 

INST 
Stated 

Goals (%) 
Fall 2019 

INST 
Goal Met 
(Yes/No) 

INST Goals 
for 

Fall 2020 

Black Female 20.4%  10.5%  11.2% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Black Male 13.1%  9.4%  10.1% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Hispanic Female 6.5%  3.9%  3.9% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Hispanic Male 7.1%  4.4%  5.1% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Other Minorities Female 3.0% 3.3%  3.4% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Other Minorities Male 2.2%  0.6%  0.0% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

White Female 23.2%  41.4%  41.0% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

White Male 24.5%  26.5%  25.3% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Total Female 53.1%  59.1%  59.6% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Total Male 46.9%  40.9%  40.4% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

 

Describe and evaluate strategies for addressing underrepresentation in full-time instructional positions. 

 
Response: The College met all goals within the Full-Time Instructional Staff category by coming within 
ten percentage points of the student population.   



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

9 
 

 
College Full-Time Instructional Staff with Continuing Contract  
Informed by the EMP-CONTINUING CONTRACT tab, complete the following table to analyze the college’s 
attainment of annual goals and long-range goals for increasing the number of women and minorities in 
full-time instructional staff with continuing contract positions.  
 

  

2018-19 
Report 

Year 
College 
Student 

Population  
(%) 

INST-CONT 
Actuals  

(%) 
Fall 2018 

INST-CONT 
Actuals  

(%) 
Fall 2019 

INST-CONT 
Stated 

Goals (%) 
Fall 2019 

INST-CONT 
Goal Met 
(Yes/No) 

INST-CONT 
Goals for 
Fall 2020 

Black Female 20.4%  10.9%  11.5% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Black Male 13.1%  8.5%  9.8%  

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Hispanic Female 6.5%  3.9%  4.1% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Hispanic Male 7.1%  5.4%  6.6% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Other Minorities Female 3.0% 2.3%  2.5% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Other Minorities Male 2.2%  0.8%  0.0% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

White Female 23.2%  42.6% 40.2% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

White Male 24.5%  25.6% 25.4% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Total Female 53.1%  59.7% 58.2% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

Total Male 46.9%  40.3% 41.8% 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population Yes 

Within 10% 
of Student 
Population 

 
Describe and evaluate strategies for addressing underrepresentation in full-time instructional positions 

with continued contract. 

Response: The College met all goals within the Full-Time Instructional Staff with Continuing Contract 
category by coming within ten percentage points of the student population.   
 

 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

10 
 

New Barriers (Optional) 
Are there new barriers affecting the successful recruitment and/or retention of females and/or 
minorities in any employment category? 
 

Response: There are no new barriers affecting the successful recruitment and/or retention of females 
and/or minorities in any employment category.  

 

Review of Part III (A): Attainment of Annual Goals 
(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 

 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Does the report include an analysis and 
assessment of annual and long-range 
goals for increasing women and 
minorities in: 

- - - 

EAM positions? Select one.   

Full-time instructional positions? Select one.   

Full-time with continuing contract 
instructional positions? 

Select one.   

Does the report identify any new 
barriers affecting the recruitment and 
retention of females and/or minorities? 

Select one.   

 

 
B. Evaluations of Employment Practices – Evaluations of Key Personnel and Presidents 
1) Provide a summary of the results of the evaluation of department chairpersons, deans, provosts and 
vice presidents in achieving employment accountability goals. The summary should also briefly describe 
the remedial steps to be taken when staff evaluations yield unsatisfactory progress toward meeting 
intended goals.  
 

Response: The Provost’s evaluation of the Deans indicates that each Dean has supported and promoted 
the College’s diversity initiatives.  Program Chairs, along with all other faculty members, are evaluated 
by their Dean. Diversity initiatives have been supported by each Dean through promoting diversity 
among faculty screening committees, participating in and instructing screening committees, and 
providing equity training for Program Chairs.  Deans understand and communicate to the Program 
Chairs the importance, and associated benefits to the College, of having a well diverse faculty. Remedial 
steps are taken when staff evaluations yield unsatisfactory progress toward meeting intended goals.  
Such steps will involve the supervisor re-evaluating past efforts to determine why the goal was not met 
and to develop new strategies on how to meet future goals.  Developing new strategies may include 
modifying the College’s use of the internet to identify targeted recruitment sites for qualified minority 
and female applicants, expanding publications and advertisements of its vacancies, and revisiting the 
College’s competitive and non-competitive promotional opportunities.   

2) Provide a summary of the college’s board of trustees’ annual evaluation of the performance of the 
president in achieving the annual and long-term goals and objectives of the employment equity plan. 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

11 
 

Response: In May of 2019 the TCC District Board of Trustees indicated that TCC is truly fortunate to have 
President Murdaugh at the helm.  His vision for the future of the College, his awareness of its current 
needs, and his ability to inspire his team to accomplish the mission are superb.  President Murdaugh 
creates an open, inclusive and collegial environment in which all ideas are heard, discussed and given 
the respect that they deserve.  Dr. Murdaugh continues to demonstrate the passion, leadership and 
vision for the College’s success.   

3) What is the date of the president’s most recent evaluation? 
 

Response: May 20, 2019  

 

Review of Part III (B): Evaluations of Employment Practices 
(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 

 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Does the report include a summary of 
the results of the evaluation of 
department chairpersons, deans, 
provosts and vice presidents in 
achieving employment accountability 
goals? 

Select one.   

Does the summary describe the 
remedial steps to be taken when staff 
evaluations yield unsatisfactory 
progress toward meeting intended 
goals? 

Select one.   

Does the report include a summary of 
the results of the annual evaluation of 
the college president in achieving the 
annual and long-term goals and 
objectives?  

Select one.   

Does the report include the date of the 
most recent presidential evaluation? 

Select one.   

 

 

 

C. Additional Requirements  
The college should complete the following related to additional processes required by section 1012.86, 
F.S.  
 
1) The college maintains diversity and balance in the gender and ethnic composition of the selection 
committee for each vacancy. Make a selection: Yes 
Include a brief description of guidelines used for ensuring balanced and diverse membership on 
selection and review committees.  
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

12 
 

Response: : Prior to the release of applications, the hiring authority will recommend names of persons 
to serve on the Review Team, and specify a person to serve as Review Team Chair.  Inclusion of women 
and minorities is strongly recommended.  It is the responsibility of the hiring authority to ensure that 
the Review Team composition is in accordance with the College’s equity plan. The make-up of the 
Review Team may encompass two or more members, excluding non-voting or ex-officio members.  The 
President has the flexibility of altering the selection process for executive positions.  
 
2) Briefly describe the process used to grant continuing contracts. 
 
Response: Faculty members must serve at the College in a probationary status in accordance with the 
provisions and intent of 6A-14.0411(1)(a)(b)(c)(d) FAC for five full years in the capacity of a full-time 
faculty member.  Continuing Contract is recommended to the Board of Trustees by the President for 
faculty members who have received satisfactory ratings on the evaluation of the performance of their 
duties and responsibilities during the probationary period. 
 
3) Briefly describe the process used to annually apprise each eligible faculty member of progress toward 
attainment of continuing contract status. 
 
Response: Full-time faculty and Deans meet to set/review goals in the fall of each year. The Deans meet 
with faculty members in the spring to provide an evaluation based on the goals established in the fall, 
including a variety of measures related to teaching and other faculty responsibilities.  Each faculty 
member will receive an annual classroom observation (Continuing Contract faculty receive a bi-annual 
classroom observation unless a more frequent review is needed). The visits are conducted by the 
Dean/Division Director or Program Chair and will be followed by a conference to discuss the 
observations. The results of the observation and conferences may be incorporated as a part of the 
annual evaluation report.  For Continuing Contract faculty, the conference may be a part of the annual 
assessment conference.  During the assessment conference, the faculty member will review his/her 
progress toward established goals and present next year’s goals to the Dean/Division Director. The 
discussion consists of observations based on any classroom visit, items suggested in student evaluations 
and other resources as appropriate. 
 
4) Briefly describe the college’s budgetary incentive plan to support and ensure the attainment of 
employment equity accountability goals. Include how resources will be allocated to support the 
implementation of strategies and the achievement of goals in a timely manner.  
 
Response: The College allocates funds for advertising in national publications and web sites, with direct 
marketing strategies targeting specific minority groups. In addition, the College allocates travel funds to 
invite applicants to campus for interviews.    
 
5) Salary Information: In the following table, include the salary ranges in which new hires were 
employed compared to the salary ranges for employees with comparable experience and qualifications 
as required in section 1012.86(2)(b)(5), F.S. Add additional rows if needed. 
 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

13 
 

Note: Salary information is requested only for new hires. New hire information can be found in your Fall 
Staff Survey IPEDS report. Race and gender information are not required; however, the college may 
choose to include additional information for purposes of diversity analysis. 
 

  Job Classification 

# of 
New 

Hires* 
New Hires* 

Salary Range 

# of Existing 
Employee(s) with 

Comparable 
Experience 

Existing Employee* 
Salary Range 

Row 1 Managerial Professional 3 $69,360  - $86,700 38 $51,676 - $120,460 

Row 2 Faculty: Annual Contract 4 $46,240 - $49,274 68 $47,196 - $55,216 

Row 3 Classified Staff 36 $18,622 - $39,261  175 $24,960 - $53,868 

Row 4 Classified Staff/Professionals 26 $32,626 - $65,000 169 $25,459 - $79,233 

Row 5 Administrative            0    

Row 6 Executive 1 $212,000 14 $93,126  - $166,100 

Row 7      
 

*IPEDS definition of New Hires: Includes full-time permanent new hires on the payroll of the institution between 
November 1, 2018, and October 31, 2019, either for the first time (new to the institution) or after a break in service 
and who are still on the payroll of the institution as November 1, 2018. 

 

 
Review of Part III(C): Additional Requirements 

(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 
 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Does the report include a brief 
description of guidelines used for 
ensuring balanced and diverse 
membership on selection and review 
committees? 

Select one.   

Does the report include a description of 
the process used to grant continuing 
contracts? 

Select one.   

Does the report include a description of 
the process used to annually apprise 
each eligible faculty member of 
progress toward attainment of 
continuing contract status? 

Select one.   

Has the college developed a budgetary 
incentive plan to support and ensure 
attainment of the goals developed 
pursuant to section 1012.86, F.S.? 

Select one.   

Did the college include a summary 
of the incentive plan? 

Select one.   

Did the summary include strategic 
resource allocation? 

Select one.   



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

14 
 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Does the report include a comparison 
of the salary ranges of new hires to 
salary ranges for employees with 
comparable experience and 
qualifications? 

Select one.   

 

 

Part IV. Strategies to Overcome Underrepresentation of Students 
 

A.Student Enrollments 
Colleges will continue to examine data trends, using the ENROLLMENT tab, in the representation of 
students by race, ethnicity, gender, students with limited English-language proficiency (LEP) skills and 
students with disabilities (DIS) (self-reported) for first-time-in-college (FTIC) and overall enrollment. 
Based on goals from previous equity reports, identify areas where goals (number of enrollments) set by 
the college last year were achieved and set goals for 2018-19 reporting year. 

Enrollments 

FTIC Overall Enrollments 

2018-19 
Goals  

 

2018-19 
Goals 

Achieved 
(Yes/No) 

2019-20 
Goals  

2018-19 
Goals  

 

2018-19 
Goals 

Achieved 
(Yes/No) 

2019-20 
Goals 

Black Males 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase the 
percentage of 

Black Male FTIC 
as a 

percentage of 
the total 

number of FTIC 
students 

 
 
 
 

NO, The gap 
between 

Black Male 
FTIC as a 

percentage 
of the total 
number of  

FTIC 
remained 

flat 
(decreased 

by .1%) 

Increase the 
percentage 

of Black 
Male FTIC as 

a 
percentage 
of the total 
number of 

FTIC 
students 

 
 

Decrease 
the gap 

between 
Black Male 

FTIC and 
Black Male 

Total 
Enrollment 

by 1% 
 
 
 

No, The 
gap 

between 
Black 

Males FTIC 
and Black 

Male Total 
Enrollment 
remained 

flat 
(increased 

by .2%) 

Decrease 
the gap 

between 
Black Male 

FTIC and 
Black Male 

Total 
Enrollment 

by 1% 
 
 
 

Black 
Females 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Decrease 
the gap 

between 
Black 

Female and 
Black Male 

Total 
Enrollment 

by 1% 
 

No, The 
gap 

between 
Black 

Female 
and Black 

Male Total 
Enrollment 
increased 
by 1.1% 

Decrease 
the gap 

between 
Black 

Female 
and Black 

Male Total 
Enrollment 

by 1% 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

15 
 

Enrollments 

FTIC Overall Enrollments 

2018-19 
Goals  

 

2018-19 
Goals 

Achieved 
(Yes/No) 

2019-20 
Goals  

2018-19 
Goals  

 

2018-19 
Goals 

Achieved 
(Yes/No) 

2019-20 
Goals 

       

Hispanic 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase 
the 

Hispanic 
Total 

Enrollment 
by 1% over 
prior year 

Total 
Enrollment 

No, The 
Hispanic 

Total 
Enrollment 
remained 

flat 
 
 
 

Increase 
the 

Hispanic 
Total 

Enrollment 
by 1% over 
prior year 

Total 
Enrollment 

Other 
Minorities None None None None None None 

White None None None None None None 

Female None None None None None None 

Male None None None None None None 

LEP None None None None None None 

DIS  None None None None None None 

 
Colleges should continue to assess, modify and/or develop new methods and strategies for 
accomplishing the established goals that have not been achieved based on goals set in the previous 
year.  
 
The college is achieving all goals: No If no, provide: 

 
An evaluation of each of the methods and strategies developed to increase student enrollments 
from underrepresented groups.  
 

Response: TCC experienced enrollment declines for 2018-2019 both overall (-2%) and FTIC (-5%) 
that have impacted our ability to meet student enrollment goals.  We did experience a slight 
increase in FTIC black females but in most categories numbers remained flat or slightly down.  
We continue to evaluate our recruitment and enrollment processes looking for stop-gaps in 
processes that can be addressed, have launched an online virtual tour for prospects from out of 
district, and offer a TCC Preview Day for local high school students.  As stated last year, we 
continue to expand our dual enrollment outreach specifically to high schools in the 32304 Zip 
code, continue marketing and recruitment strategies focused on TCC2FSU and TCC2FAMU, are 
using texting and chat through our Enrollment Call Center, added Track and Field, and expanded 
our out of class non-academic supports.  We also continue to support our Take Stock In Children 
and Talent Search programs.                                     
 
 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

16 
 

 
New methods and strategies, if applicable.  
 
Response: 1. In adopting the College’s new strategic plan (2019-2023), equity, specifically 
closing equity achievement gaps, was identified as our top priority. As we disaggregated data, 
we found two equity challenges that the college is working to address: (a) Gaps in completion 
rate and (b) Low college enrollment and high failure rates of students at our closest (and 
majority/minority) high school.   2. TCC has invested in a Summer Bridge program (Eagles RISE 
Academy) which identifies areas in which under-prepared students tend to struggle and then 
strengthens college readiness for these students who are transitioning to college from some of 
our most vulnerable high schools. This program provides students a jump start on building 
academic skills, especially in English and Math. It provides students the opportunity to become 
acquainted with college resources, college expectations, and to interact with faculty and staff. 
Students participate in a learning community model where select classes are clustered along 
with a math immersion class and student engagement seminars.   3. Student onboarding 
practices have been realigned to help ensure a more seamless transition to college, with the 
new student orientation serving as a critical component in building strong and effective early 
connections. Participation in the college orientation program is the initial step of connecting 
students to advisers and helping them feel that they authentically belong and are supported as 
they start their college career. We focused our efforts to maximize our time with students to 
inform them of first-year programs, academic advising, learning support and charting their path 
to success at the college. In addition, we identified social and personal development services 
which meet the needs of students, such as mental health counseling services.   4. We have 
prioritized our partnerships with K- 12 by expanding dual enrollment opportunities, by 
supporting a mentoring program at our middle schools and by connecting our college faculty to 
high school faculty. Those strategies have been impactful and led to a 33 percent growth in dual 
enrollment over the past two years.   5. The college partnered with the Florida College Access 
Network to become the Local College Access Network (LCAN). LCANs are community-based 
bodies made up of representatives from K-12, higher education, nonprofits, local government, 
business and economic development, and philanthropic organizations. These collaborative 
networks are committed to increasing college and career readiness, access, and attainment 
rates.   

 
B.Student Completions 
This year’s report evaluates completions of Associate in Arts (AA) degrees, Associate in 
Science/Associate in Applied Science (AS/AAS) degrees, certificates and baccalaureate degrees, as 
documented in the COMPLETION tab. Based on goals from previous equity reports, identify areas where 
goals (number of degree/certificate completions) set by the college last year were achieved and set 
goals for 2019-20. Certificates include: College Credit Certificates (CCC); Career Certificates (CC); Applied 
Technology Diplomas (ATD); Education Preparation Institution Certificates (EPI); Certificates of 
Professional Preparation (CPP); Apprenticeship Programs (APPR); and Advanced Technical Certificates 
(ATC). 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

17 
 

AA Degrees 

2018-19 
Goals  

2018-19 Goals 
Achieved (Yes/No) 

2019-20 
Goals  

Black 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 

students who 
complete AA degrees 

by 1% 
 

Yes, The percentage 
of Black students 

who completed AA 
degrees increased by 

1.8% 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 

students who 
complete AA degrees 

by 1% 
 

Hispanic None None None 

Other Minorities None None None 

White None None None 

Female None None None 

Male 
 
 
 
 

Increase the 
percentage of Male 

students who 
complete AA degrees 

by 1% 

No, The percentage 
of Male students 

who completed AA 
degrees decreased by 

2.7% 

Increase the 
percentage of Male 

students who 
complete AA degrees 

by 1% 

LEP None None None 

DIS  None None None 

AS/AAS Degrees 

2018-19 
Goals  

2018-19 Goals 
Achieved (Yes/No) 

2019-20 
Goals  

Black Males 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 
Male students who 

complete AS degrees 
by 1% 

 
 

No, The percentage 
of Black Male 
students who 
completed AS 

degrees  remained 
flat (decreased by 

.4%) 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 
Male students who 

complete AS degrees 
by 1% 

 

Black Females 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 

Female students who 
complete AS degrees 

by 1% 
 
 

No, The percentage 
of Black Female 
students who 
completed AS 

degrees 
decreased by 4.5% 

  

Increase the 
percentage of Black 

Female students who 
complete AS degrees 

by 1% 
 

 

Hispanic None None None 

Other Minorities None None None 

White None None None 

Female None None None 

Male None None None 

LEP None None None 

DIS  

 
 
 

None 
 
 
 

None None 
 
 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

18 
 

Colleges should continue to assess, modify and/or develop new methods and strategies for 
accomplishing the established goals that have not been achieved based on goals set in the previous 
year. 
 
The college is achieving all goals: No If no, provide: 

 
An evaluation of each of the methods and strategies developed to increase student completions 
from underrepresented groups.  
 
Response: While the College has not achieved all goals, we have seen success in increasing the 
number of black students earning Associate in Arts degrees and certificates.  We continued our 
work with mapping out academic pathways, strengthened our transfer support programs, and 
ensured students earned the certificates that were embedded into the A.S. programs.  
 
New methods and strategies, if applicable.  
 
Response: 1. Understanding that student pathways are personal and must be based on a 
student’s strengths, interests, and values, the College launched the SuperStrong Assessment 
during orientation to help students make informed career decisions. Together, students and 
advisors determine the student’s schedule and create a holistic support plan for a successful 
year.    2. Framed through the lens of our equity data, over 170 faculty and staff participated in 

Certificates 

2018-19 
Goals  

2018-19 Goals 
Achieved (Yes/No) 

2019-20 
Goals  

Black 
 
 
 
 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 

students who 
complete certificate 

programs by 1% 

Yes, The percentage 
of Black students 
who completed 

certificate programs 
increased by 7.9% 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 

students who 
complete certificate 

programs by 1% 

Hispanic None None None 

Other Minorities None None None 

White None None None 

Female None None None 

Male None None None 

LEP None None None 

DIS  None None None 

Baccalaureate Degrees 

2018-19 
Goals  

2018-19 Goals 
Achieved (Yes/No) 

2019-20 
Goals  

Black None None None 

Hispanic None None None 

Other Minorities None None None 

White None None None 

Female None None None 

Male None None None 

LEP None None None 

DIS  None None None 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

19 
 

design thinking sessions to address the question of “How might TCC redesign its student 
experience through an innovative model that removes barriers for all students to be 
successful?” Various sessions produced a list of campus-wide barriers and identified high impact 
strategies to address barriers. Through our CCSSE and SENSE data we gained an awareness that 
while we offer students a multitude of services, they did not see the relationship of those to 
their individual experience. This led to a strategy aligned to the strategic plan to redesign our 
student services model through the lens of students and to deepen the integration of those 
services. The redesigned model is founded on the principles of Connections, Academics, 
Resources, and Engagement.   3. Together with Flagler’s leadership, we have re-energized the 
partnership to align programming with in- demand professions across the state of Florida, while 
working to remove barriers to access for our students. To address the state’s growing teaching 
shortage, leadership from both institutions worked to establish a 2+2 articulation agreement in 
Education at a cost of under $10,000.  Nursing, another in-demand career, is facing a state 
shortage that will create a need for more than 14,000 Registered Nurses (RN). In response, TCC 
developed a Bachelor of Science in Nursing (BSN) program in 2016. TCC established an 
articulation agreement with Lively Technical College to provide a bridge for its licensed practical 
nursing graduates into our BSN program.   4. We also launched Math Champions, a tutoring and 
intensive support program. The student-tutors are embedded in the developmental math 
courses as peer mentors and work with students during class time to provide one-on-one 
support.   5. We are expanding our out of class support through such services as Talon’s Market 
(free food pantry) and FarmShare, mental health counseling, and have hired a case manager to 
work with students whose basic needs are impacting student success.   

 
C. Student Success in Targeted Programs 
The college’s plan for 2018-19 should have included methods and strategies to increase the 
participation of students in programs and courses in which students have been traditionally 
underrepresented, including, but not limited to, mathematics, science, computer technology, 
electronics, communications technology, engineering and career education, as required under section 
1000.05(4), F.S. Colleges should provide any updates to methods and strategies, if applicable. 
 
The college is providing updates: Yes If no, provide: 

 
An evaluation of each of the methods and strategies developed to increase underrepresented 
student participation in programs and courses. 
 
Response: Tallahassee Community College offers several programs that are geared towards 
increasing participation of students in programs and courses in which students have been 
traditionally underrepresented, including, but not limited to, mathematics, science, computer 
technology, electronics, communications technology, engineering and career education, as 
required under §1000.05, F.S.  The programs include:  Florida Georgia Louis Stokes Alliance for 
Minority Participation (FGLSAMP), Sister 2 Sister, and Black Male Achievers.  Each program 
provides strategies to increase participation for underrepresented students such as: 

 
 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

20 
 

Strategy Expected 
Outcomes 

Assessment 
Method 

Results 

The College offers paid 
Internship Opportunities 
for underrepresented 
students who are enrolled 
in STEM related courses 
and programs. Provide 
better marketing to 
current students by 
contacting students who 
identify as being 
interested in STEM.  Also, 
work with faculty to 
identify interested 
students within the STEM 
classes. 

Number of 
underrepresented 
students 
participating in 
STEM internships 
will increase by 
10%. 

Compare number of 
underrepresented 
students 
participating in 
internships during 
2016-2017 to 2017-
2018 to 2018-2019. 

2016-2017: 12 students 
2017-2018:  18 students 
2018-2019: 18 students 
 
The College did not 
experience an increase 
in underrepresented 
students participating in 
STEM internships.  The 
number of students 
remained the same. The 
College will continue to 
explore methods to 
further increase 
participation.  2019-
2020 data will not be 
available until June 
2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The college offers 
scholarship opportunities 
for underrepresented 
students who are enrolled 
in STEM related programs 
(scholarships provided 
through FGLSAMP and 
STEM Star).  Provide better 
marketing to incoming 
high school students by 
visiting high school senior 
nights; participating in the 
scholarship fairs; 
contacting students who 
identify as being 
interested in STEM. 

Number of 
qualified 
awardees will 
increase by 10%.  

Compare number of 
underrepresented 
students awarded 
scholarships during 
2016-2017 to 2017-
2018 to 2018-2019. 

2016-2017; 30 students 
2017-2018:  30 students 
2018-2019: 35 students 
 
The College increased 
the number of 
underrepresented 
students who were 
awarded scholarships.  
The College will 
continue to explore 
more options to 
increase the number of 
students.   2019-2020 
data will not be 
available until June 
2020. 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

21 
 

The College offers STEM 
Center tutoring for STEM 
Gateway Courses. 

Number of 
underrepresented 
students 
successfully 
completing STEM 
Gateway Courses 
will increase by 
10%. 
 

Compare the 
success rates of 
underrepresented 
students 
participating in 
tutoring provided by 
the STEM Center to 
the 
underrepresented 
students who are 
not participating in 
tutoring during 
2016-2017 to 2017-
2018 to 2018-2019. 

2016-2017: 24 students 
2017-2018:  36 students 
2018-2019:  38 students 
 
 
The College experienced 
a very small increase in 
underrepresented 
students participating in 
STEM internships.  The 
College will continue to 
explore methods to 
further increase 
participation.  2019-
2020 data will not be 
available until June 
2020. 
 

The College offers 
extracurricular Workshops 
to increase STEM 
awareness: Robotics 
Workshop; Drone 
Workshop; 3 D Printing 
Workshop; Auto-Cad 
Workshop.  Increase 
marketing for the 
workshops as well as 
increase the number of 
available workshops. 

Number of 
underrepresented 
students 
participating in 
extracurricular 
workshops will 
increase by 10%. 

Compare number of 
underrepresented 
students 
participating in the 
activities during 
2016-2017 to 2017-
2018 to 2018-2019. 

2016-2017: 51 students 
2017-2018:  86 students 
2018-2019: 88 students 
 
The College experienced 
a small increase in 
underrepresented 
students participating in 
extracurricular 
workshops and STEM 
internships.  The College 
will continue to explore 
methods to further 
increase participation.   
2019-2020 data will not 
be available until June 
2020. 
 
 

The College offers Career 
Awareness Workshops for 
underrepresented 
students:  Increase the 
offerings of STEM Career 
Workshops and invite 
underrepresented 
professionals to discuss 
their career pathway. 

Increase the 
number of Career 
Awareness 
Workshops for 
underrepresented 
students. 

Compare the 
number of 
workshops offered 
each year. 

2017-2018:  5 
workshops 
2018-2019: 10 
 
The College offered 
increased Career 
Awareness Workshops 
for students by 50%.  
The College continues to 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

22 
 

develop workshops.  
2019-2020 data will not 
be available until June 
2020. 
 

The College has 
implemented a Math 
Champions initiative to 
provide peer tutoring. 
Students will provide 
tutoring and study 
workshops. 

An increase of 
success for 
participating 
students in Math 
by 5%.  Increase 
time to 
completion of 
Math sequence. 

Success rates for 
underrepresented 
students 
participating vs. 
control (students 
that do not). 

The success rates of 
students participating in 
the Math Champions 
initiative was 5% points 
higher than non-
participants based on 
students enrolled in 
math courses during the 
2017-2020 academic 
year. 
 

 

  



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

23 
 

 
 

Part V. Substitution Waivers for Admissions and  
Course Substitutions for Eligible Students with Disabilities 

 
Course Substitution Report, Form CSR01 

Please list the number of students who received course substitutions as well as the required course(s), 
substitution(s) provided and discipline area (e.g., mathematics) by disability type beginning with the fall 
semester of the preceding academic year. For the courses, please include the prefix, course number and 
course name (e.g., ENC 1101 Composition I). Add rows if necessary. Please indicate “0” for the number 
of students if no substitutions were granted. 

Disability Type Number 
of 
Students 

Required Course(s)  
(prefix, number and 
title) 

Substituted Course(s)  
(prefix, number and title) 

Discipline 
Area 

Deaf/Hard of 
Hearing 

    

   

   

Visual 
Impairment 

    

   

   

Specific 
Learning 
Disability 

26  MGF1106 
Mathematics I 
for Liberal Arts  

 MGF1107 
Mathematics II 
for Liberal Arts 

 MAT1033 Intermediate 
Algebra 

 OCE1001 Introductory 
Oceanography 

 EVR1001 Introduction to 
Environmental Sciences  

 BSC1005 Introduction to 
Biological Sciences  

 AST1002 Introduction to 
Astronomy 

 MET1010 Meteorology 

 GLY2160 Geology of 
National Parks 

 ESC1000 Earth and Its 
Environment 

 CGS1060 Computer and 
Internet Literacy 

 EME2040 Introduction to 
Technology for Educators  

General 
Education 
Mathematics  



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

24 
 

Disability Type Number 
of 
Students 

Required Course(s)  
(prefix, number and 
title) 

Substituted Course(s)  
(prefix, number and title) 

Discipline 
Area 

Two (2) Semesters of  
Foreign Language 

 ANT2410 Introduction to 
Cultural Anthropology  

Foreign 
Language  

Orthopedic 
Impairment 

    

   

   

Speech/Langua
ge Impairment 

 

1 

   

Two (2) Semesters of  
Foreign Language 

 AML2600 African 
American Literature  

 LIT2323 Multicultural 
Mythology  

Foreign 
Language 

   

Emotional or 
Behavioral 
Disability 

5  MGF1106 
Mathematics I 
for Liberal Arts  

 MGF1107 
Mathematics II 
for Liberal Arts 

 CGS1060 Computer and 
Internet Literacy 

 AST1002 Introduction to 
Astronomy 

 EME2040 Introduction to 
Technology for Educators 

General 
Education 
Mathematics  

Two (2) Semesters of  
Foreign Language 

 AML2600 African 
American Literature  

 ANT2410 Introduction to 
Cultural Anthropology  

Foreign 
Language 

   

Autism 
Spectrum 
Disorder 

 

1 

 MGF1106 
Mathematics I 
for Liberal Arts  

 MGF1107 
Mathematics II 
for Liberal Arts  

 CGS1060 Computer and 
Internet Literacy 

 OCE1001 Introductory 
Oceanography 

 

General 
Education 
Mathematics 

   

   

Traumatic 
Brain Injury 

1  MGF1106 
Mathematics I 
for Liberal Arts  

 EVR1001 Introduction to 
Environmental Sciences  

 CGS1060 Computer and 
Internet Literacy 

General 
Education 
Mathematics 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

25 
 

Disability Type Number 
of 
Students 

Required Course(s)  
(prefix, number and 
title) 

Substituted Course(s)  
(prefix, number and title) 

Discipline 
Area 

 MGF1107 
Mathematics II 
for Liberal Arts 

 

   

   

Other Health 
Impairment 

1 Two (2) Semesters of  
Foreign Language 

N/A Foreign 
Language 

   

   

 

How many requests for course substitutions were made and how many substitutions were granted 
during the preceding academic year? (Please list the number of requests per semester starting with the 
fall semester.)  Please indicate “0” if no substitutions were requested or granted. 

Semester Number of Substitutions Requested  Number of Substitutions Granted 

Fall  23 19 

Spring 15 12 

Summer 5 4 

Total 43 35 

 

Review of Part V: Course Substitutions 
(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 

 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Did the college submit 
the Course Substitution 
Report? 

Select 
one. 

  

 
  



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

26 
 

Part VI. Gender Equity in Athletics 

 
The college offers athletic programs: Select one. If no, move to the next section. If yes, complete this 
section. 
 
Assessment of Athletic Programs  
Section 1006.71, F.S., Gender equity in intercollegiate athletics, is applicable to postsecondary 
institutions offering athletic programs. Florida College System institutions that offer athletic programs 
shall develop a gender equity plan pursuant to section 1000.05, F.S. The plan is to include consideration 
of equity in sports offerings, participation, availability of facilities, scholarship offerings and funds 
allocated for administration, recruitment, comparable coaching, publicity and promotion and other 
support costs. An annual assessment is required and each college president is to be evaluated on the 
extent to which gender equity goals have been accomplished.  
 
For this part, provide the college’s latest Equity in Athletics Disclosure Act (EADA) Survey Federal Report 
as an appendix. 
 
Data Assessment  
Section 1006.71, F.S., requires an assessment of major areas to evaluate the college’s progress toward 
gender equity in athletics.  
 
Provide updates or new information related to sports offerings; participation; availability of facilities; 
scholarship offerings; funds allocated for administration, recruitment, comparable coaching, publicity 
and promotions; or other considerations by the college to continue efforts to achieve gender equity. If 
the college is not in compliance with Title IX, updates must be included in the college’s Corrective Action 
Plan of this report. 
 
Compliance with Title IX  
Using athletic participation data from the latest EADA Survey Federal Report, complete the following 
table to determine gender equity based on participation rates. 

 
Athletic Participation by Gender Compared to Student Enrollments by  

Gender for July 1, 2017, through June 30, 2018, and July 1, 2018, through June 30, 2019 
 

 2017-18 2018-19 

 Males Females Total  Males Females Total   

Total Number of Athletes 44 41 85 Total Number of Athletes 54 41 95 
Percent of Athletes by 
Gender 

51.8% 48.2% 100% Percent of Athletes by 
Gender 

56.8% 43.2% 100% 

Total Number of 
Enrollments 

6,833 7,609 14,443 Total Number of 
Enrollments 

6,619 7,497 14,116 

Percent of Enrollments 
by Gender 

47.3% 52.7% 100% Percent of Enrollments 
by Gender 

46.9% 53.1% 100% 

Difference between the 
percent of athletes and 
the percent of students 
enrolled 

4.5% -4.5%  Difference between the 
percent of athletes and 
the percent of students 
enrolled 

9.9% -9.9%  



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

27 
 

Proportionality of Participation 
Based on the table, is the percentage of female athletes greater than (or at least within 5 percentage 
points of) the percent of female students enrolled? 2017-18: Yes 2018-19: No 
Based on the participation rates of female athletes compared to female enrollments and based on the 
college’s athletic program assessment as presented in the EADA Survey Federal Report, check at least 
one component below for assuring the institution is in compliance with Title IX, Gender Equity in 
Athletics. 
 

 ☒   Accommodation of interests and abilities 

 ☒   Substantial proportionality 

 ☒   History and practice of expansion of sports 
 

Corrective Action Plan  
If the program is not in compliance, complete the Corrective Action Plan below and specify or update 
the plan to achieve compliance. Include completion dates for each method and strategy. 
 

Gender Equity in 
Athletics 
Component 

Planned Actions to Address 
Deficiencies Found in Athletics 

Responsible Person(s) and 
Contact Information 

Timelines  

Athletic 
Participation by 
Gender Compared 
to Student 
Enrollments 

There were a total of seven females 
(three softball, four cross country) 
who had originally committed to 
participating but did not follow 
through, and replacing those 
individuals is not always realistic. 
Had these individuals been part of 
the report, our participation 
numbers would have only been off 
by 0.5%.  
 
Cross country provides the best 
opportunity for growth in female 
participation. To help with 
recruitment and participation, emails 
will be sent to the student 
population throughout summer 
term, seeking female interest.  
 
Additionally, athletics will coordinate 
a campus tour opportunity in 
conjunction with the FHSAA Cross 
Country Championships, which will 
be held in Tallahassee in November 
2020. This will provide a dedicated 
opportunity to be in front of 
potential recruits, connect with 
admissions representatives and visit 
campus while learning about the 
cross country program.  

Rob Chaney 
chaneyr@tcc.fl.edu 
850-201-6085 

May-August 
2020 – email 
campaign to 
TCC students.  
 
November 2020 
– hold 
recruitment 
event 

 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

28 
 

 

Review of Part VI: Gender Equity in Athletics 
(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Does the report include the Equity in 
Athletic Disclosure Act (EADA) Survey 
Federal Report for 2019? 

Select one.   

Does the equity report reflect updates 
or new information related to: sports 
offerings; participation, availability of 
facilities; scholarship offerings; funds 
allocated for administration, 
recruitment, comparable coaching, 
publicity and promotions, or other 
considerations by the college to 
continue efforts to achieve gender 
equity? 

Select one.   

Is the percentage of female athletes 
greater than (or at least within 5 
percentage points of) the percent of 
female students enrolled? 

Select one.   

Does the report include any of the 
following to ensure compliance with 
Title IX?  

Select one.   

Accommodation of interests and 
abilities 

Select one.   

Substantial proportionality Select one.   

History and practice of expansion of 
sports 

Select one.   

If there were any disparities in sections 
A or B, or if the percentage of female 
participants was not substantially 
proportionate to the percentage of 
female enrollments, did the college 
submit a corrective action plan?  

Select one.   



29 
 

Part VII. Signature Page 

 

FLORIDA EDUCATIONAL EQUITY ACT 
2019-2020 Annual EQUITY UPDATE REPORT 

Signature Page 

 
 
 
 
The college ensures that section 1000.05, F.S., section 1006.71, F.S., and section 1012.86, F.S., and 
implementing Rules 6A-6A-10.041 and 6A-19.001-.010, F.A.C., referenced in this report, are properly 
implemented and that this institution prohibits discrimination against students, applicants for 
admission, employees or applicants for employment on the basis of race, color, ethnicity, national 
origin, gender, pregnancy, disability, age or marital status.  
 
The college has developed policies and procedures for providing reasonable substitutions for admission, 
graduation, study program admission and upper-division entry for eligible students with disabilities as 
required by section 1007.264 and section 1007.465, F.S., and for implementing Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973.  
 
The institution is in compliance with the identified components of the athletic programs, as required by 
Title IX, the Florida Educational Equity Act, section 1006.71, F.S., Gender equity in intercollegiate 
athletics and, where not compliant, the college has implemented a corrective action plan. (Applicable 
for institutions with athletic programs.) 
 
The college actively implements and monitors the Employment Equity Accountability Plan and certifies 
compliance with all statutory requirements of section 1012.86, F.S. 

 
 

Renae Tolson, Equity Officer DATE 
 

Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D., President DATE 
 

Eugene Lamb, Jr., Chair, College Board Of Trustees 
 

  

DATE 
 

Tallahassee Community College 

Per DFC instruction,Tallahassee Community College’s 2019-2020 Equity Report approval is scheduled 

for the next District Board of Trustees meeting which will be held on May 18, 2020. 



College Annual Equity Update  

2019-20 Template 

 

  

 
 

30 
 

 
This concludes the 2019-20 Annual Equity Update Report, which must be submitted, as a Word 

document, to FCSInfo@fldoe.org by May 1, 2020. Colleges may attach additional files (PDF or Word) 

as appendices. Note: while the report must be submitted by May 1, 2020, DFC will accept signature 

pages signifying district board of trustees’ approval after the May 1, 2020, deadline, if the college 

indicates the equity report approval is scheduled for the next district board of trustees meeting. 

 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The Report on Athletic Program Participation Rates 
and 

Financial Support Data 
EADA Report 

 
 
 

Tallahassee Community College 
October 15, 2019 

 



 

Any coeducational institution of higher education that participates in Title IV, the federal 
student aid program, and has an intercollegiate athletics program, must comply with the 
EADA by preparing an annual report, officially called The Report on Athletic Program 
Participation Rates and Financial Support Data; more commonly known as the EADA 
Report. The EADA Report must be published by October 15 each year and must be 
made available upon request to students, prospective students, and the public. A 
prospective student is defined as an individual who has contacted an eligible institution 
requesting information concerning admission to that institution.  
 
 
 

Total Institutional Undergraduate Population by Gender 
 

Number of male and female full-time undergraduate students that attended the school 

 

 Number Percentage 

Male 2,923 50% 

Female 2,880 50% 

TOTAL 5,803 100% 

 
 

Sports Teams and Participation by Gender 
 

Sport Male Female 

Baseball 26  

Basketball 15 14 

Softball  17 

Track and Field and Cross 
Country (combined) 

  

Track and Field (Indoor) 0 0 

Track and Field (Outdoor) 7 5 

Cross Country 7 7 

TOTAL 55 43 

Total Unduplicated Participants 54 41 

Percentage 56.8% 43.2% 

   

NOTES:  
 
Cross country includes five males and four females who participated in the event 
of half marathon. 
 
One male and two females who participated in cross country also participated in 
track and field (outdoor). 

 
 



Total Amount of Athletically Related Student Aid Awarded 

 

 Male Female Total 

 $483,791 $477,591 $961,382 

Percentage 50.3% 49.7% 100% 

 
 

Total Expenses Incurred 
 

 Male Female Total 

 $818,206 $757,407 $1,575,613 

Percentage 51.9% 48.1% 100% 

 
 

Total Revenues 
 

 Male Female Total 

 $818,206 $757,407 $1,575,613 

Percentage 51.9% 48.1% 100% 

 
 

Total Expenses By Team 
 

 Male Female Total 

Baseball $403,095   

Basketball $399,301 $375,275  

Cross Country and 
Track & Field 

$15,810 $24,620  

Softball  $357,512  

TOTAL $818,206 $757,407 $1,575,613 

Percentage 51.9% 48.1% 100% 

 
 

Total Revenues By Team 
 

 Male Female Total 

Baseball $403,095   

Basketball $399,301 $375,275  

Cross Country and 
Track & Field 

$15,810 $24,620  

Softball  $357,512  

TOTAL $818,206 $757,407 $1,575,613 

Percentage 51.9% 48.1% 100% 

 
 



Head Coaches - Men's Teams 

 Male Head Coaches Female Head Coaches 

 FT 
coach 

PT coach FT emp PT emp FT coach PT coach FT emp PT emp 

Baseball 1  1      

Basketball 1  1      

Cross Country 
and Track & Field 

 1*  1*     

TOTAL 2 1 2 1     

*- the same individual coached both the cross country and track and field teams 

 
Head Coaches - Women's Teams 

 
 Male Head Coaches Female Head Coaches 

 FT 
coach 

PT coach FT emp PT emp FT coach PT coach FT emp PT emp 

Basketball  1  1     

Cross Country 
and Track & Field 

 1*  1*     

Softball     1  1  

TOTAL  2  2 1  1  

*- the same individual coached both the cross country and track and field teams 

 
Head Coaches Salaries 

 
 Men’s Teams Women’s Teams 

Average salary $40,062 $36,637 

No. of coaches included 3 3 

Average salary per FTE $56,692 $51,845 

No. of FTE included 2.12 2.12 

 



Assistant Coaches - Men's Teams 
 
 Male Assistant Coaches Female Assistant Coaches 

 FT 
coach 

PT coach FT emp PT emp 
or 

volunteer 

FT coach PT coach FT emp PT emp 
or 

volunteer 

Baseball  5  5     

Basketball  3  3     

Cross Country & 
Track and Field 

     1  1 

TOTAL  8  8  1  1 

         

 
Assistant Coaches - Women's Teams 

 
 Male Assistant Coaches Female Assistant Coaches 

 FT 
coach 

PT coach FT emp PT emp 
or 

volunteer 

FT coach PT coach FT emp PT emp 
or 

volunteer 

Basketball  3  3  1  1 

Cross Country & 
Track and Field 

     1  1 

Softball      2  2 

TOTAL  3  3  4  4 

NOTE: The same individual was an assistant coach for cross country and track & field. 

 
Assistant Coaches Salaries 

 
 Men’s Teams Women’s Teams 

Average salary $7,957 $8,033 

No. of coaches used to calculate 
the average salary 

7 6 

No. of volunteer coaches 2 1 

Average salary per FTE $41,566 $22,628 

No. of FTE included 1.34 2.13 

 
  
 



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 18, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

   

SUBJECT: Construction Status Report 

 

 
Item Description 
This item describes the status of various construction, renovation, remodeling and site 
improvement projects at all TCC locations for the Board of Trustees. 
 
Overview and Background 
The attached Construction Status report details the noteworthy construction and renovation 
projects being undertaken to support the educational mission of the College. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
None. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
All construction and renovation projects are funded prior to approval, with most being funded 
from capital improvement fees. 
 
Recommended Action 
Presented as an information item only. 

 



CONSTRUCTION STATUS REPORT – AS OF MAY 2020 
 
 
MAIN CAMPUS (SITE 1) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation - SM 116 

95% TBD Underway 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – TPP 130 

95% TBD Underway 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – TPP 205 

95% TBD Underway 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – HSS 118 

65% TBD Underway 

AMTC Welding Lab 10% TBD 
Plans review complete. EDA Site 
Certificate approved. Developing CM RFP 
with EDA specifics.  

Conversion of TESA Locks 
to C-Cure (Main Campus) 

90% Apr 2020 Underway 

Sidewalk Repairs, 
Elimination of Trip Hazards 

Continuous On-going 
Ground 955 Trip Hazards and Replaced 
25 sections of Sidewalk 

AD bldg. 27 Roof 
Restoration 

100% April 2020 Complete 

SUSTAINABILITY % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

Hydration Stations Continuous On-going 
Prevented 146,459 Plastic Bottles from 
going to landfills 

Recycled Plastic 
Lumber/Furniture 

Continuous On-going 
Prevented 1,567,000 Plastic Bags from 
going to landfills 

GADSDEN (SITE 2) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

None to report    

FLORIDA PUBLIC SAFETY INSTITUTE (SITE 3) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

    

CENTER FOR INNOVATION (SITE 4) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

Elevator Upgrade 65% June 2020 Underway 



Page 2 

 

GHAZVINI CENTER FOR HEALTHCARE EDUCATION (SITE 5) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

None to report    

WAKULLA ENVIRNOMENTAL INSTITUTE (SITE 6) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

None to report    

 
FOUNDATION CLASSROOM RENOVATION SUMMARY 

 

Renovated Classroom(s) Cost to Date 

DH 205 - Classroom Renovations  $           44,746.24  

EN 116 - Classroom Renovations  $           58,008.03  

CH 137 - Classroom Renovations  $           96,381.51  

CT 257 - Classroom Renovations  $           90,756.01  

CH 245, 246, 247 & 248 - Classroom Renovations  $           44,746.24  

CH 254, 255 & 256 - Classroom Renovations  $           72,824.51  

CH 259, 258 & 257 - Classroom Renovations  $           62,955.39  

CH 260, 261 & 262 - Classroom Renovations  $           70,614.19  

HSS 111 - Classroom Renovations  $           44,679.45  

SM 116 - Classroom Renovations  $           59,675.36  

SM 129 - Classroom Renovations  $           24,087.31  

TPP 130 - Classroom Renovations  $           62,969.29  

TPP 205 - Classroom Renovations  $           66,282.17  
 



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 18, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

 ______________________ 

SUBJECT: Fund Analysis - April 

 

 
Item Description 
This item is to provide the Board a summary of the College’s operating revenues and 
expenses as of 4/28/2020. 
 
Overview and Background 
As directed in the Florida Public Community College Accounting Manual, revenues from state 
appropriations, student tuition and fees, interest earned, and other contributions are recorded 
and monitored in the College’s operating fund (fund 1).  Expenditures for direct instruction 
expenses are also recorded in the operating fund. 
 
In accordance with Florida Statutes (1011.01), the Board of Trustees must approve the 
College’s operating fund budget each fiscal year. The College monitors the operating fund 
activity to ensure approved budget limits are maintained. Additionally, the Board has 
requested a report of all purchases over $100,000, but less than $325,000. The College 
made no purchases within the specified range during the month of April. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
For information only, no Board action required. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
The College continues to be in sound financial condition. 
 
Recommended Action 
For information only, no Board action required. 

 



REVENUE Received April % of YTD 

Budgeted Year to Date Revenues Budget

Student Fees 25,141,465$      22,829,464 1,216,315$        91%

State Support 34,179,013        27,432,681        3,348,165$        80%

Federal Support 375,000             384,395             22,574$             103%

*Other Revenue 580,000             1,558,431          68,150$             269%

Non-Revenue Sources 1,567,691          -                    -$                  0%

TOTAL REVENUE 61,843,169$      52,204,971$      4,655,204$        84%

EXPENSES Expended April % of YTD 

Budgeted Year to Date Expenses Expenses

PERSONNEL COSTS

Administrative 3,500,735$        2,939,759$        282,875$           84%

Instructional 12,178,112        10,015,613        966,523$           82%

Non-Instructional 16,204,691        13,335,109        1,328,210$        82%

OPS 5,557,476          4,649,666          417,622$           84%

Personnel Benefits 10,702,155        8,135,533          811,846$           76%

TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS 48,143,169$      39,075,680$      3,807,076$        81%

CURRENT EXPENSES

Services 4,843,864$        2,934,373$        246,327$           61%

Material & Supplies 3,329,612          1,776,115          147,210$           53%

Other Current Charges 5,276,525          3,793,059          767,027$           72%

TOTAL CURRENT EXPENSES 13,450,000$      8,503,547$        1,160,564$        63%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 250,000$           14,652$             -$                  6%

TOTAL EXPENSES 61,843,169$      47,593,879$      4,967,640$        77%

Tallahassee Community College

Fund Analysis

Unrestricted Current Fund

As of April 28, 2020



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 18, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Bret Ingerman, M.S.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Information Technology 

   

SUBJECT: Information Technology Plan for 2020-21 

 

 
Item Description 

This item requests that the District Board of Trustees approve the Information Technology Plan for FY 
2020-21 
 
Overview and Background 
As requested by the District Board of Trustees, we present the Information Technology Plan for FY 
2020-21 for your information and discussion.  While it is unlikely that we will complete all of the 
projects that are listed, this does present the major technology needs, initiatives, and directions for 
the College as of this time.  Due to the inherent nature of technology, items may move on and off the 
list as needs and technologies change and evolve. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  

This is a yearly update on the information technology plans for the College for the upcoming fiscal 
year  
 
Past Actions by the Board 
None 
 
Recommended Action 

Approve the Information Technology Plan for FY 2020-21. 
 

 



 

 

April 30, 2020 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO:  Jim Murdaugh, President 
 
 FROM: Bret Ingerman, Vice President for Information Technology 
 
SUBJECT: Information Technology Plan for FY 2020-21 
  
 
As we begin a new fiscal year, I wanted to outline for you the Information Technology Plan for 
the upcoming year. 
 

• Continue to explore, procure and deploy appropriate technologies to support the 
academic and business continuity plans of the College as it relates to the coronavirus 
pandemic. Also explore, procure and deploy technologies that will support any changes 
to the academic and business operations of the College post-pandemic. 
 

• Continue the process of replacing and/or upgrading the College's ERP, SIS and related 
systems (including but not limited to CRM, curriculum management, catalog 
management, degree audit, financial aid, advising, and other systems that either require 
change due to ERP conversion or whose change in conjunction with the ERP conversion 
will benefit the College 

 
• Replace and/or upgrade aging wireless networking technology and associated 

components (including hardware and software and associated components).  
 

• Replace, acquire and/or upgrade the technologies used for the College’s public website, 
intranet, portal and internal collaboration sites.  
 

• Continue to acquire software technologies that offer robust features and flexible, modern 
integration capabilities that can be used in conjunction with other College-owned 
technologies to develop creative solutions to meet institutional needs. 
 

• Replace and/or upgrade aging end-user computing devices and associated hardware and 
software components (including but not limited to desktop computers, laptop computers, 
tablets, etc.)   

 



 

 

• Explore and/or implement a robust centralized network and data security program 
including but not limited to physical and logical network security (hardware, software), 
intrusion detection and prevention (hardware and software), network access control 
(hardware and software), and data security policies and procedures (on premise, and 
cloud/hosted).  

 
• Continue to enhance end-point protection, access controls, and data security (such as two-

factor authentication, identity management tools, PII scanning tools, anti-virus software, 
mobile device management, etc.).  

 
• Replace and/or upgrade aging classroom instructional technologies and associated 

hardware and software components  
 

• Replace and/or upgrade aging networking equipment, servers, and associated 
technologies (including but not limited to Uninterruptible Power Supplies, data storage 
devices, backup devices, etc.) with an eye towards increasing redundancy of critical 
systems and a goal of increasing the use of virtualization and / or hosted and cloud 
technologies.  

 
• Replace and/or upgrade the security systems in use at the College (including video 

cameras and related systems, dispatch software, door access, etc.).  
 

• Replace and/or upgrade campus police department technologies including but not limited 
to database systems, reporting systems, records management, computer aided 
dispatching, evidence/property/incident/activity tracking, and case management systems 
along with any hardware, software, training, and/or maintenance needs that might be 
necessary to implement and support present and future needs and systems or integration 
and/or communication with other systems.  

 
• Support technology needs and initiatives at all campus sites and locations.  

 


	Top
	1. April Meeting Minutes
	April Minutes

	2. Attorney Invoice - March
	BMO Invoice - March 2020
	BMO Invoice (March 2020)

	3. Sponsored Programs - Provider - May
	Sponsored Programs - Provider - May

	4. Sponsored Programs - Fiscal Agent - May
	Sponsored Programs - Fiscal Agent - May

	5. Human Resource Report
	May Board Agenda 2020
	Board Report for May 18 2020

	6. TCC Foundation Update
	0520 Memo
	Fundraising Info for DBOT Meeting Final 4-30-20

	7. 2019-2020 Equity Report Update
	Equity Board 2019-2020 Memo
	Equity Report 2019-2020 - Executive Summary
	Equity Report 2019-2020_CollegeAnnualEquity_Final
	Equity Report Appendix 2019 EADA Report

	8. Construction Status Report
	Construction Status Memo Template_May2020
	CONSTRUCTION STATUS REPORT_NewTemplate_May2020

	9. Fund Analysis - April
	April 2020 Fund Analysis Final
	April 2020 Fund Analysis

	10. Information Technology Plan for 2020-21
	Board Agenda Item for 2020-21 Tech Plan
	IT Plan 2020-21

	Bottom

